

# DELAWARE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

In Person

### <u>August 9, 2021 7:30pm</u>

Mayor Waltman called the regular meeting of the Delaware Township Committee to order on August 9, 2021 at 7:30 PM. Mayor Waltman announced that this meeting is called pursuant to the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act. Notice of this meeting was faxed to the Hunterdon County Democrat, Trenton Times, Courier News and the Star Ledger, was posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building and filed with the Township Clerk on January 5, 2021.

#### PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Waltman led those in attendance in the pledge to the nation's flag.

#### **ROLL CALL**

Present: Mayor James Waltman, Deputy Mayor Joseph Vocke, Committee Members Daniel Kwasnik, Charles Herman and Susan Lockwood along with Township Clerk Maria Andrews, Deputy Township Clerk Tiffany Crivelli, and Township Attorney Joseph Tauriello.

#### APPROVAL OF TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

A motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik, to approve the Committee's 7/12/2021 Regular Meeting and Executive Session minutes were approved by voice vote.

#### TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE LIAISON REPORTS

Committeeman Kwasnik stated he spoke with DPW Director Jay Trstensky regarding the lights for 'Light It Up Gold' and that the current bulbs are either LED or larger and are hard to change. Committeeman Kwasnik noted he would ask again if there is anything else that can be done such as film over the current lights.

Committeeman Kwasnik noted that there is a schedule in place for the maintenance of the dirt roads in town, however DPW has been behind due to available manpower.

Committeewoman Lockwood stated that the County has done a Pipeline Resolution for opposing the Pipeline and suggested that the Township do the same.

Committeewoman Lockwood noted that Open Space is still looking for a coordinator.

Committeeman Herman stated that he spoke with East Amwell and an agreement was made to do shared service and this way there would be more candidates applying for a more desirable position.

Committeeman Vocke stated that the Board of Education decided to have all students and teachers wear masks for the school year.

Committeeman Herman noted the Fishing Derby was very successful at Copeland Farm and had a great turnout.

Committeeman Herman stated that renovations are finishing up at Town Hall and a soft opening date to open to the public would be Monday, August  $23^{\rm rd}$ .

Mayor Waltman noted a correspondence from the Quarry Compliance Committee to waive the annual inspection and request that it be done by ordinance as the quarry is not currently operating.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik for a waiver for the annual inspection of the quarry was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Mayor Waltman noted that Josh Petrucelli recently passed away and that he and his wife, Casey, are the residents who bought and erected the permanent 'Christmas' tree in the Village Green. Mayor Waltman inquired if the Committee wished to dedicate the tree to Mr. Petrucelli as well as get a plaque or a bench for the area. The Committee all agreed and Deputy Clerk Crivelli was tasked with researching this.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik to not exceed \$200 for a plaque and/or bench was unanimously approved by roll call vote.

Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

#### **OPEN TO THE PUBLIC**

Mayor Waltman opened the floor to public comment for any items listed on the agenda.

Chuck Cline, 22 Reading Road, inquired about mask requirements and how to obtain copies of ordinances.

Doug Borden, 245 Lambertville Headquarters Road, spoke about his thoughts on meeting minutes.

Hearing no other members of the public speak up, Mayor Waltman closed the floor to public comment.

## INTRODUCTION/PUBLIC HEARING ON ORDINANCES Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2021-07

Mayor Waltman read Ordinance No. 2021-07 by title.

#### Delaware Township Ordinance No. 2021 - 07

## An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 260-1 of the Code of the Township of Delaware Entitled "Intoxication in Public or Semipublic Places; Nudity; Indecent Acts Prohibited."

§260-1 Intoxication in public or semipublic places; nudity; indecent acts prohibited. No person shall appear in any street, sidewalk, ally, park or other public place, quasi-public place to which the public is invited in a drunken or intoxicated condition, or in a state of nudity, or make any indecent exposure of his or her person or be guilty of any other lewd or indecent act of behavior, or exhibit, sell or offer to sell any indecent or lewd item or thing or exhibit or perform in public any lewd act or other representation.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Vocke to open Ordinance #2021-07 for public hearing was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Hearing no members of the public speak up, a motion by Herman, seconded by Vocke to close Ordinance #2021-07 for public hearing was unanimously approved by voice vote.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Lockwood to adopt Ordinance #2021-07 was approved by roll call vote.

Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

Mayor Waltman read Ordinance No. 2021-08 by title.

#### Delaware Township Ordinance No. 2021 - 08

#### An Ordinance by The Township of Delaware in Hunterdon County, New Jersey Amending Section 7-3 of the Delaware Township Municipal Code to Include Permit Parking in Designated Area

WHEREAS, residents of the Township of Delaware have been negatively impacted by non-resident parking in certain residential communities; and,

WHEREAS, certain communities have Home Owner's Associations (HOA) that wish to regulate parking within their community for the general health safety and well-being of its residents.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the Township of Delaware in the County of Hunterdon, State of New Jersey, as follows:

1. Section 7-3 of the Delaware Township Municipal Code is hereby amended by adding a new paragraph (10) entitled §7-3.10 Parking by Permit Only which states as follows:

"No person shall park a vehicle upon Paulmier Road, or any part thereof, without first obtaining a parking permit issued through the HOA and visibly displayed within the vehicle. Any person convicted of violating the provisions of this chapter shall be liable to a penalty of \$50.00"

- 2. Any article, section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or other provision of the Delaware Township Code that is inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance is hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.
- 3. If any section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or provision so adjudged, and the remainder of this ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective.
- 4. This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication and filing with the Hunterdon County Planning Board, and as otherwise provided for by law.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Vocke to open Ordinance #2021-08 for public hearing was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Chuck Cline, Upper Creek Road, inquired about the costs. Mayor Waltman stated this would be handled by the Home Owners Association.

Richard McComber, 33 Haines Road, inquired on his concerns with it being a public road and if residents would be notified prior to it taking affect. Committeeman Herman noted that the ordinance is the best option to help residents feel comfortable and safe and have the residents and the police work together. Mayor Waltman noted that children were starting to be verbally abused and that something needed to be done before it escalates more. Committeeman Herman also noted residents would be notified.

Hearing no other members of the public speak up, a motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik to close Ordinance #2021-08 for public hearing was unanimously approved by voice vote.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik to adopt Ordinance #2021-08 was approved by roll call vote.

Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

Mayor Waltman read Ordinance No. 2021-09 by title.

#### Delaware Township Ordinance No. 2021 - 09

A Capital Ordinance of the Township of Delaware, County of Hunterdon, And State of New Jersey to Authorize an Expenditure and Appropriation from The Capital Improvement Fund for The Purchase of Road Improvements in The Amount of \$108,000.00.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the Township of Delaware, County of Hunterdon, and State of New Jersey as follows:

Section 1. Delaware Township has a need to chip, tar and make improvements on various roads including but not limited to Dunkard Church Road, Haines Road, Yard Road, Britton Road, and Biser Road in Delaware Township in order to maintain our road system. Delaware Township hereby authorizes an appropriation and expenditure for labor and materials to make improvements on various township roads, in an amount not to exceed \$108,000.00; and,

Section 2. Total amount to be expended from the capital improvement fund shall not exceed \$108,000.00.

Section 3. The Township hereby certifies that it has adopted a capital budget or a temporary capital budget, as applicable. The capital or temporary capital budget of the Township is hereby amended to conform with the provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewith. To the extent that the purposes authorized herein are inconsistent with the adopted capital or temporary capital budget, a revised capital or temporary capital budget has been filed with the Division of Local Government Services.

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption in accordance with the laws of the State of New Jersey.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Lockwood to open Ordinance #2021-09 for public hearing was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Hearing no members of the public speak up, a motion by Herman, seconded by Lockwood to close Ordinance #2021-09 for public hearing was unanimously approved by voice vote.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik to adopt Ordinance #2021-09 was approved by roll call vote.

Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

#### **RESOLUTIONS #2021-66 - #2021-71**

#### **RESOLUTION 2021-66**

WHEREAS, an application has been received for the Township of Delaware to grant a raffle license; and

WHEREAS, no objections have been received by the Clerk of the Township, nor were any objections made at the meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the that raffle license be granted to the following:

TO: VFW Sergeantsville Memorial Post 8390

BENEFIT: Net proceeds to be used to promote Americanism and Patriotism in

the community

DATE: November 13, 2021

TIME: 12 Noon

LOCATION: Delaware Township Municipal Parking Lot

570 Rosemont Ringoes Road Sergeantsville, NJ 08557

I hereby certify this to be a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Delaware Township Committee at their meeting held on August 9, 2021.

Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC

Approved: August 9, 2021

#### Delaware Township Resolution #2021-67 Bids for Road Maintenance and Materials

**WHEREAS,** bids for road maintenance and materials were received on July 9, 2021 as part of the joint bid for Delaware, Franklin and Kingwood Townships; and

WHEREAS, only one bid was received for hot asphalt; and

**WHEREAS**, the contract for the municipal maintenance work and material in the Township of Delaware in the County of Hunterdon be and is hereby awarded to the following:

Item Description	Qty	Unit	Unit Price	Distanc e (miles)	Mileag e Adj	Adjuste d Unit Price	Bidder
Hot Mix Asphalt, Mix I-4 or I-5, Surface Course (FOB)	1,000	TON S	\$78.00	N/A	N/A	N/A	Stavola Construction Materials, Inc.
Hot Mix Asphalt, Mix I-2, Base Course (FOB)	500	TON S	\$74.00	N/A	N/A	N/A	Stavola Construction Materials, Inc.

**WHEREAS,** Asphalt and fuel price adjustments will be made in accordance with the NJDOT standards; and

**WHEREAS**, the Township of Delaware has a need for a Hot Mix Asphalt supplier within 20 miles; and

**WHEREAS**, the presiding officer of this body be and is hereby directed to sign for and on its behalf the contract in the prescribed form for said maintenance work and material; and

**WHEREAS**, the Clerk of this body be and is hereby directed to seal said contract with the corporate seal of this body and to attest to the same.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED** by the Township Committee of the Township of Delaware, County of Hunterdon, State of New Jersey that the contract for Hot Asphalt is hereby awarded to Stavola Construction Materials, Inc. as provided above.

stavola dolisti action Materials, ilie. as provided above.	•
ATTEST:	
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC	James Waltman, Mayor
Certification I, Maria Andrews, Clerk of the Township of Delaware, Codo hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of Res Township Committee on August 9, 2021.	County of Hunterdon and State of New Jersey
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC	
Delaware Township Reso Approving Acceptance of the Body The New Jersey Department of	-Worn Camera Grant from
<b>WHEREAS,</b> the Office of the Attorney General of the Ne Safety administers the state grant entitled SFY21 Body	
<b>WHEREAS</b> , this grant program was established to equal State mandated body worn cameras and other allowabed 142, N.J.S.A. 40A:14-118.3-5 and the Attorney General	ole expenses in accordance with P.L. 2020, c.
<b>WHEREAS,</b> the Township of Delaware was approved for \$14,266.00 for the award period of January 1, 2021 this	
<b>NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,</b> that the Towns County of Hunterdon, are hereby authorized to accept amount of \$14,266.00 to aid in implementation of a law program.	the Body-Worn Camera Program grant in the
ATTEST:	
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC	ames Waltman, Mayor
CERTIFICAT I, Maria Andrews, Clerk of the Township of Delaware, i hereby certify that the foregoing is correct and true co Township Committee of the Township of Delaware, in Jersey on August 9, 2021.	n the County of Hunterdon, New Jersey do py of Resolution #2021-68 adopted by the

Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC

Approved: August 9, 2021

#### Delaware Township Resolution #2021-69 Tax Redemption

WHEREAS, the Delaware Township Tax Collector held a tax sale on June 11, 2019; and

**WHEREAS,** at said sale Tax Sale Certificate #2019-001 for property known as Block 26 Lot 21–66 Britton Road, Assessed Owner: Real Property SM LLC was sold to CHRISTIANA T C/F FIRSTRUST; and

WHEREAS, a request to redeem TSC #2019-001 was received; and

**WHEREAS,** payment has been received by the Tax Collector for redemption of TSC #2019-001 in the amount of \$30,395.92;

**NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,** by the Township Committee of the Township of Delaware, County of Hunterdon, State of New Jersey, that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to issue redemption monies of \$30,395.92 and also refund the premium of \$15,000.00 to:

CHRISTIANA T C/F CE1/FIRSTRUST PO BOX 5021, PHILADELPHIA PA 19111-5021

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,** that a certified copy of this Resolution be provided to the Tax Collector and Chief Financial Officer.

ATTEST:	
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC	James Waltman, Mayor
Danene L. Gooding, CTC, Tax Collector	
I, Maria Andrews, Clerk of the Township of Delawa hereby certify that the foregoing is correct and tru Township Committee of the Township of Delaward Jersey on August 9, 2021.	e copy of Resolution #2021-69 adopted by the
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC	
Approved: August 9, 2021	

Delaware Township Resolution #2021-70
Award of Contract
Police Vehicle 2021 Ford Utility Interceptor with
Accessories and Emergency Equipment

**WHEREAS**, exemptions from competitive bidding are allowed for items/services purchased through State Contract per N.J.S.A.40A:11-12; and

**WHEREAS**, the Township of Delaware has determined the following State Contract provides the Township with the most competitive price for these items/services;

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED** by the Township Committee of the Township of Delaware that the following purchase be authorized through the utilization of State Contract:

	<u>Unit Price</u>
One (1) 2021 Ford Interceptor	\$29,763.00
Options	\$ 2,202.93
Emergency Equipment	\$ 2,849.53

**Total Cost** \$34,815.46

Per NJ State Contract: #20-Fleet-01189

Winner Ford 770 Cuthbert Blvd Cherry Hill, NJ 08002

Cherry Hill, NJ 080	002	
ATTEST:		
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk,	RMC	James Waltman, Mayor
Approved: August 9, 2021		
A motion by Herman, seconded by roll call vote.  Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwo		tions #2021-66 - 70 was approved by
	vare Township Resolution of Contract - Rittenhouse	
WHEREAS, Delaware Township r	equested proposals for Im	provements to Rittenhouse Road; and
WHEREAS, four (4) bids were red	ceived on July 20, 2021; and	d
		ngineer and a recommendation has nsive and responsible bidder under
WHEREAS, The Chief Financial O	fficer has certified the avail	lability of funds for this project.
<b>NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOI</b> County of Hunterdon and State of		mmittee of the Township of Delaware,
		Project is hereby awarded to Top Line in its proposal in the amount of \$185,
Top Line Construction Condocumentation as request	-	isfactory proof of insurance and such
=	Mayor is hereby directed to 30 submitted by Top Line C	sign for and on its behalf the proposa construction Corporation.
	Clerk of this body is hereby y and to attest to the same.	directed to seal said proposal with the
ATTEST:		
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk,	RMC	James Waltman, Mayor
I, Diane Soriero McDaniel, Chief Fi that funds for this contract are av		nship of Delaware, do hereby certify apital Fund.
Diane Soriero McDaniel, CFO		
I, Maria Andrews, Township Clerk by the Delaware Township Comm		oe a true copy of a resolution adopted

Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC

Approved: August 9, 2021

A motion by Kwasnik, seconded by Lockwood to approve Resolution #2021-71 was approved by roll call vote.

Herman: Abstain, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

#### **NEW BUSINESS/OTHER**

Deputy Mayor Vocke noted there have been a few changes in the DTMUA opening up membership spots to be able to move up an alternate and that Dwain Floyd is an expert on what the DTMUA needs.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Lockwood to approve T. Soltis and D. Floyd as members of DTMUA was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Mayor Waltman noted a Special Event application for Bridge Velo, LLC Bicycle Race on August 22, 2021.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik for approval of the Special Event application was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Mayor Waltman stated that originally the Township fireworks were scheduled for September 11<sup>th</sup>, however that day holds a lot of meaning and the Township Committee felt compelled to have the Recreation Commission change the date to September 18<sup>th</sup>.

Mayor Waltman noted a request from the Recreation Commission for Tailgating by adults of legal drinking age and extending the use of Dilts Park beyond dusk for the fireworks on September  $18^{\rm th}$  was received.

A motion by Herman, seconded by Lockwood to approve tailgating and extending the use of hours for the fireworks on September 18<sup>th</sup> was unanimously approved by roll call vote. *Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes* 

Liza Davis, Chair of the Historic Advisory Committee, addressed the Township Committee about the duties of the Historic Advisory Committee and commented that there is no clear mission in place and noted what was drafted over 10 years ago, needs clarification. The Committee agreed and advised they would look into this matter and compile a draft for the responsibilities as well as the lines of communications between the various committees and boards within the Township, County and State.

Mayor Waltman noted that although the HAEC is a controversial topic, and several residents have been confused with the communications by the HAEC and energy suppliers, he agrees that the program has provided energy savings and that the benefits outweigh the negatives.

Committeewoman Lockwood agreed and noted they need to be reminded to not use Township letterhead or names, but still let people know this is not a scam and to have everything open and transparent.

Mayor Waltman noted that residents are more knowledgeable on the program now and noted we have a better website in place for communications.

Committeewoman Lockwood noted that anyone can opt out at any time as well.

Committeeman Herman stated this is not the business the Township should be involved in and the residents should choose their own different ways to save and go greener privately. Committeeman Herman noted that some residents received abnormally high bills that was sanctioned by the Township.

Committeewoman Lockwood stated that the high bill was due to the payment program, not the HAEC.

Committeeman Herman noted that regardless, residents still hold the Township responsible and the Township is the one receiving the phone calls.

Committeeman Vocke agreed with Committeeman Herman, however felt that it should be left for now.

A motion by Lockwood, seconded by Vocke to approve the HAEC program for another year was approved by roll call vote.

Herman: No, Kwasnik: No, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

#### **OPEN TO THE PUBLIC**

Mayor Waltman opened the floor to public comment for items not on the agenda.

Kathy Klink, 155 Ferry Road, inquired about trucks driving on Britton Road and thanked the DPW and CFO for working to get the trees cleared on the White Oak Trail.

Chuck Cline, 22 Reading Road, inquired about speed limits on Covered Bridge Road and Sanford Road.

Hearing no other members of the public speak up, Mayor Waltman closed the floor to public comment.

#### FINAL COMMENTS OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

Committeewoman Lockwood inquired about Lower Creek Road. Committeeman Herman noted that it is on the next agenda and that it was recommended the engineer to attend. Mayor Waltman explained Engineer Roseberry stated there was no eminent danger, nothing could be done immediately and that there is no need to worry.

Committeeman Vocke stated that he and his wife are expecting a baby in December.

Mayor Waltman noted that regarding the minutes, residents do have a voice, but that it is hard to keep everyone happy. Township Attorney Tauriello stated that the Committee decided at the Reorganization that Robert's Rules are to be followed and that the minutes are in accordance with that. Township Attorney Tauriello stated that he hopes residents are not coming to the meetings just to see their name in minutes. Township Attorney Tauriello noted the Committee has listened and took the input from residents and that there is no need for the minutes to change. Township Attorney Tauriello stated if residents wanted verbatim, they could OPRA request the recordings.

#### APPROVAL OF THE BILL LIST

A motion by Herman, seconded by Kwasnik to approve payment of the \$926,937.10 bill list was unanimously approved by roll call vote.

Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Approval of Resolution #2021-72: To Enter into Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing Contracts and Subjects Falling Under Attorney-Client Privilege – *The discussion is expected to take approximately 30 minutes. Action may be taken.* 

A motion by Herman, seconded by Lockwood to approve Resolution #2021-72 and enter into Executive Session was unanimously approved by roll call vote.

Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke: Yes, Waltman: Yes

#### **Resolution #2021-72**

WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 231, P.L. 1975, permits the exclusion of the public from a meeting in certain circumstances; and

WHEREAS, this governing body is of the opinion that such circumstances presently exist,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Committee of Delaware Township, County of Hunterdon, State of New Jersey, as follows:

- 1. The public shall be excluded from discussion of and action upon the hereinafter specified subject matter.
- 2. The general nature of the subject matter to be discussed is as follows: Contracts, Personnel Matters, and subjects falling under Attorney-Client privilege. The discussion is anticipated to take approximately 30 minutes. Action may be taken.
- 3. It is intended at this time that the above stated subject matter will be made public when the matter has been resolved.

4. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC

A motion by Vocke, seconded by Kwasnik to return to Open Session was unanimously approved by voice vote.

It was noted for the record that the Committee was in Executive Session from 9:33 PM – 9:50 PM.

#### Delaware Township Resolution #2021-73 Salary & Wages Amendment

WHEREAS, the Township Committee of the Township of Delaware, Hunterdon County, State of New Jersey desires to amend Resolution #2021-27 that set 2021 salaries for all Township employees not covered under collective bargaining agreements; and,

WHEREAS, there exists a need for a Substitute Construction Technical Assistant effective August 16, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Delaware Township Committee that the salary for the Substitute Construction Technical Assistant position is established at \$25.00/hour.

Substitute Construction Technical Assistant posit	ion is established at \$25.00/ nour.
ATTEST:	
Maria Andrews, Township Clerk, RMC	James Waltman, Mayor
Approved: August 9, 2021	
A motion by Herman, seconded by Vocke to approapproved by roll call vote.  Herman: Yes, Kwasnik: Yes, Lockwood: Yes, Vocke:	·
<b>ADJOURNMENT</b> Mayor Waltman adjourned the meeting at 9:52pr	n.
Tiffany Crivelli, Deputy Clerk	 James Waltman, Mayor

Approved: October 12, 2021